
 MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
 “A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 
  
  

REGULAR COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
Tuesday February 25, 2014 9:00 AM Council Chambers 

Administration Building 
 

 
#1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
  

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

 1 

#3 MINUTES 3.1 Regular Council Meeting minutes held February 11, 2014 – to be 
adopted 
 

3 

  3.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

 

#4 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

  

#5 DELEGATIONS 
 

  

#6 BYLAWS 
 

6.1 Bylaw 13-711 NE 13-70-23-W5M 11 

  6.2 Bylaw 14-718 SW 6-72-26-W5M 
 

23 

  6.3 Bylaw 14-720 NW 20-72-26-W5M 
 

34 

#7 OLD BUSINESS  
 

 

#8 NEW BUSINESS 8.1  Compactor Tender Results 
 

46 

  8.2  2014 Paving Tender 
 

48 

  8.3  Grande Cache Road Report 
 

49 

  8.4 Policy 4002 – Farmland Access 
 

51 

  8.5 Policy 4003 – Traffic Control Devices 
 

53 

  8.6 Policy 6302 & Procedure 6302-01 Roadside Vegetation 
Management 
 

57 

  8.7 Policy 6303 & Procedure 6303-01 Weed Control 61 

 



 
  8.8 Policy 1002 – Travel & Subsistence 

 
65 

  8.9 Policy 1009 – Internet Services Policy 
 

70 

  8.10 Policy 1015 – Conference Attendance 
 

73 

  8.11 Reverse Penalty 
 

77 

  8.12 Grande Cache Child Care Society 
 

79 

  8.13 Grande Prairie Women’s Residence Association  
 

91 

  8.14 Fox Creek Nordic & Trail Club 
 

110 

 LATE ITEM 
 

8.15 Expansion Adjustment of Firehall Door 
 

112 

 LATE ITEM 8.16 Grovedale Community & Agricultural Society 
 

114 

 LATE ITEM 8.17 Ridgevalley Grad Class  
 

118 

 LATE ITEM 8.18 CAO Report 
 

119 

#9 COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & REPORTS 
 

 
 

 

#10 CORRESPONDENCE 
 

• County of Grande Prairie – Hwy 43 & Hwy 49 Alignment  

#11 IN CAMERA  
 

  

#12 ADJOURNMENT  
 

 

 

  [Type text]
 [Type text] [Type text] 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 Minutes of a 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
M.D. Administration Building, 

Valleyview, Alberta, on Tuesday, February 11, 2014 
 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

Reeve Gervais called the meeting to order at  9:01 a.m. 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTENDING 
 
 
 
 
 

Reeve   Dale Gervais 
Deputy Reeve   Tom Burton 
Councillors   George Delorme  
   Dave Hay 
   Roxie Rutt 
   Bill Smith 
   Dale Smith 
   Les Urness 

 
    
Chief Administrative Officer  Mike Haugen 
General Manager, Corporate Services  Rosemary Offrey 
General Manager, Community Services  Dennis Mueller 
Assistant General Manager, Infrastructure & Planning Grant Gyurkovits 
Legislative Services Officer  Lucien Cloutier 
Communications Officer  Denise Thompson 
Recording Secretary  Lianne Kruger 
 

ABSENT   
#2:  
AGENDA  
 

MOTION: 14.02.52. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That the February 11, 2014 agenda be adopted with the following additions: 
 

• 5.1 TechEra 
• 8.9  Three Water Treatment Facilities 
• 8.10 Little Smoky Accumulated Costs 
• 8.11 Water Point Tender Request 
• 8.12 Wanyandie Flats West Road Stabilization Project 
• 11.1 Personnel 
• 11.2 Land 

  CARRIED 
 

#3.1 
Regular Council 
Meeting 
 

MOTION: 14.02.53. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Tuesday, January 28, 
2014 be adopted with the following change.  

• 8.5 Change Pat Cook to Pat Cooke 
  CARRIED 
 

33



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 
#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING 
FROM MINUTES 

3.2  BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES: 
• Enhanced Policing Agreement 

 
#4 
PUBLIC HEARING 

4.0  PUBLIC HEARING 

#6  
Bylaws 

6.0  BYLAWS 

 6.1 BYLAW 13-700 LAND USE BYLAW 
 

THIRD READING MOTION: 14.02.54. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw 13-700 as presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

 6.2  BYLAW 13-701 SE 20-70-22-W5M 
 

FIRST READING MOTION: 14.02.55. Moved by: COUNCILLOR GEORGE DELORME 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 13-701 for Mar-Rik to re-designate the 
lands from Agriculture to Industrial District on SE 20-70-22-W5M. 
  CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC HEARING MOTION: 14.02.56. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw 13-701 to be held on March, 25 
2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

 6.3  BYLAW 13-714  NW 26-71-26-W5M 
 

FIRST READING MOTION: 14.02.57. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 13-714 for Cauchie to re-designate the 
lands from Agricultural District to Rural Commercial District on NW 26-71-26-W5M. 
  CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC HEARING MOTION: 14.02.58. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 13-714 for Cauchie to be held 
on March 25, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

CONCEPT PLAN MOTION: 14.02.59. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council accept the attached Concept Plan submitted for the Land Use 
Amendment on Cauchie NW 26-71-26-W5M for information. 
  CARRIED 
 
 

44



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 
 6.4  BYLAW 14-719  SW 29-70-24-W5M 

 
FIRST READING MOTION: 14.02.60. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 

That Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 14-719 for Clarke to re-designate the 
lands from Agricultural District to Country Residential Two District on SW 29-70-24-
W5M. 
  CARRIED 
 

PUBLIC HEARING MOTION: 14.02.61. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 14-719 for Clarke to be held 
on March 11, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

 6.5  BYLAW 14-722 FCSS BOARD CREATION & CORRECTION 
 

FIRST READING MOTION: 14.02.62. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council gives First Reading to Bylaw 14-722 – Family & Community Support 
Services Board Creation. 
  CARRIED 
 

SECOND READING MOTION: 14.02.63. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council gives Second Reading to Bylaw 14-722 – Family & Community Support 
Services Board Creation. 
  CARRIED 
 

THIRD READING 
CONSENT 

MOTION: 14.02.64. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council consents to giving Third Reading to Bylaw 14-722 at this meeting. 
  CARRIED 
 

THIRD READING MOTION: 14.02.65. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council gives Third Reading to Bylaw 14-722 – Family & Community Support 
Services Board Creation. 
  CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

#7 
OLD BUSINESS 

7.0  OLD BUSINESS 

#8 
NEW BUSINESS 

8.0  NEW BUSINESS 

 8.1  VALLEYVIEW SAND & SALT SHED 
VALLEYVIEW SAND 
& SALT SHED 

MOTION: 14.02.66. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council approve the construction of a pole shed on Greenview property 
located adjacent to the existing equipment repair shop with a total budget of 
$568,000.00. 
   CARRIED 

55



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 
 8.2  GROVEDALE SAND & SALT SHED COST BREAKDOWN 

 
GROVEDALE SAND 
& SALT SHED 

MOTION: 14.02.67. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council accept the Grovedale Sand and Salt cost breakdown for information. 
  CARRIED 
 

#5 
DELEGATIONS 

5.0  DELEGATIONS 

 5.1  TECHERA  
 

TECHERA 
PRESENTATIONS 

Glenn Pitt and Roger Higgins gave a verbal presentation on TechEra Consulting. 
 
Mr. Pitt highlighted on the project process, invoice processing and TechEra’s 
Schedule of Fees.  
 
 

 Reeve Gervais called for a recess at 10:16 a.m. 
 
Reeve Gervais reconvened the meeting at 10:36 a.m. 
 

 8.3  39TH AVENUE TRAFFIC IMPACT ASSESSMENT STUDY 
 

TRAFFIC IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT 
STUDY 

Councillor Urness declared a pecuniary interest and vacated the Council Chambers 
at 10:40 a.m. 
 
MOTION: 14.02.68. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council approve $10,000.00 towards the Traffic Impact Assessment Study on 
39th Avenue as per the Town of Valleyview letter dated January 20th, 2014. 
  CARRIED 
 
Councillor Urness re-entered the meeting at 10:46 a.m. 
 

 8.4  PROJECT STATUS – ENGINEERING REPORT 
 

CAPITAL STATUS 
ENGINEERING 
REPORT 

MOTION: 14.02.69. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council accept the Capital Status Engineering Report as information. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.5  AAMDC – TOWN COUNCIL ATTENDANCE 
 

AAMDC MOTION: 14.02.70.  Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council invite one elected official from each of Grande Cache, Fox Creek and 
Valleyview to attend AAMD&C Conventions and to cover the costs of their 
expenses at Greenview’s rate except for honorariums for the invitees. 

66



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 5 

 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.6   AAMDC ZONE RESOLUTION 
AAMDC ZONE 
RESOLUTION 

MOTION: 14.02.71. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
To approve the draft resolution regarding proposed amendments to the 
Determination of Population Regulation as presented, except for the correction of 
the word “bet” to “be” in the “Now Therefore” clause, and to forward this draft 
resolution to the February 14, 2014 Alberta Association of Municipal Districts and 
Counties Zone four meeting for consideration. 
   CARRIED 
 

 8.7  GROVEDALE SENIOR’S CLUB ANI 
ADDITIONAL 
NAMED INSURED 

MOTION: 14.02.72. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council approve the addition of the Grovedale Senior’s Club as an “Additional 
Named Insured” under Greenview’s insurance policy. 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.8  RESCHEDULE FEBRUARY 18 BUDGET MEETING 
BUDGET MEETING 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPECIAL 
COMMITTEE OF 
THE WHOLE 

MOTION: 14.02.73. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council rescind MOTION: 13.10.633-08 which reads as follows:  
 That Council move to hold a Special Committee of the Whole meeting to 
review the 2014 Budget for November 19th 2013, December 17th 2013, February 
4th 2014, and February 18th 2014. 
   CARRIED 
 
MOTION: 14.02.74. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council hold a Special Committee of the Whole meeting on February 24, 2014 
immediately following the Wapiti Corridor Plan Presentation. 
   CARRIED 
 

 Reeve Gervais called for a recess at 11:47 a.m. 
 
Reeve Gervais reconvened the meeting at 1:08 p.m. 
 

 8.9  THREE WATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 
 

WATER 
TREATMENT 
FACILITIES 

MOTION: 14.02.75. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council approve an additional 2013 budget allocation of $798,444.00 for New 
Fish Creek, Sweathouse and Sunset House water treatment facilities to come from 
the Infrastructure Reserve Fund. 
  CARRIED 
 
 

77



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 6 

 
 8.10  LITTLE SMOKY ACCUMULATED COSTS 
LITTLE SMOKY 
WATER POINT 

MOTION: 14.02.76. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council accept the Statement of accumulated cost overrun to Little Smoky 
Water Point as information only. 
 
Councillor Bill Smith vacated the meeting at 1:39 p.m. 
 
Councillor Bill Smith re-entered the meeting at 1:40 p.m. 
 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.11  WATER POINT TENDER REQUEST 
 

TENDER REQUEST MOTION: 14.02.77. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council approve administration to tender out the completion of works for 
New Fish Creek, Sweathouse and Sunset House water treatment facilities. 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.12   WANYANDIE FLATS WEST ROAD STABILIZATION PROJECT 
 

WANYANDIE FLATS 
STABILIZATION 

MOTION: 14.02.78. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council agree to enter into a Three Party Agreement with an upset limit of 
$440,000.00 including contingency to help fund the completion of the Wanyandie 
Flats West Road / Smoky River Bank Stabilization Project. 
  CARRIED 
 

COST 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

MOTION: 14.02.79. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council direct administration to bring back a report on the cost of the 
contributions from Milner Power and Grande Cache Coal towards the Wanyandie 
Flats West Road / Smoky River Bank Stabilization Project. 
  CARRIED 
 

 MANAGERS’ REPORT 
 

MANAGERS’ 
REPORT 

MOTION: 14.02.80. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council accept the Managers’ Report as information. 
  CARRIED 
 

#9 
COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & 
REPORTS 

9.0  COUNCILLORS BUSINESS & REPORTS 

 9.2  MEMBERS’ REPORT:  Council provided an update on activities and events both 
attended and upcoming, including the following: 
 

88



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 7 

 
 COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 

Attended the Ag Service Board Conference 
Attended the Special Committee of the Whole 
Attended the Multi-Plex Meeting 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DISASTER SERVICES 
FORUM 

COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY: 
Attended the Special Committee of the Whole 
Attended the Multi-Plex Meeting 
Attended Municipal Government Act Review in Grande Prairie 
 
MOTION: 14.02.81. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That Council permit any Councillor on the Disaster Services Committee to attend 
the Disaster Service Forum in Banff. 
 CARRIED 
 

 
 
 

COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
Attended the Weyerhaeuser Meeting 
Attended the Grande Prairie Chamber Ball 2014 
Attended the Special Committee of the Whole 
Attended AAMDC’s for information on Municipal Government Act Review 
 

 COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
Attended the Special Committee of the Whole 
 

 COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
Attended the Grand Spirit Foundation 
Attended the Special Committee of the Whole 
Attended the Municipal Government Act Review 
 

 COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
Attended the AGM for Wapiti Corridor Planning Society 
Attended Grande Cache Joint Council Meeting 
Attended Committee of the Whole in Grande Cache 
Attended Wapiti River Management Plan 
Attended Community Futures 
Attended the Agricultural Service Board Conference 
Attended the Community Club meeting 
Attended Special Committee of the Whole 
Attended the Wapiti River Management Plan 
Attended the Agricultural Society Conference 
 

 9.1  REEVE’S REPORT: 
 

 REEVE DALE GERVAIS: 

99



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      February 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 8 

 
Attended the Special Committee of the Whole 
Met with Town of Valleyview Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer Mike Haugen 
and Glenda from STARS regarding Helipad opening 
Attended Municipal Government Act Review 
Attended Multi-Plex Meeting 
Attended the Grande Prairie Chamber Ball 2014 
 

#10 
CORRESPONDENCE 

10.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

# 11  
IN CAMERA 
 

11.0 IN CAMERA CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

IN CAMERA MOTION: 14.02.82. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting go in camera at 3:25 p.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

 11.1  Personnel 
 11.2  Land 

 
OUT OF CAMERA MOTION: 14.02.83. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 

That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting come out of camera at 4:56 p.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

#12 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

12.0  ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION: 14.02.84. Moved by: COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
That this meeting adjourn at 4:57 p.m. 
  CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
__________________________________                                      ______________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                                      REEVE 
 

1010



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Bylaw No.13-711 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: Tuesday, February-25-2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: SAR 
DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning AGM: GG PREPARER:   GC 
FILE NO./LEGAL: A13-011/ NE-13-70-23-W5   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
    FINANCIAL REVIEW:  

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 13-711 for Huet to re-designate the lands from Agricultural (A) District 
to Country Residential One (CR-1) District on NE-13-70-23-W5M. 
 
That Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 13-711 under Huet to be held on March 25, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
(Mike’s Notes: Lucien has reviewed, so this Bylaw number is accurate?) 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
To re-designate 39.91 Acres from Agriculture (A) to Country Residential One (CR-1).  
  
APPLICATION OVERVIEW: 
 
Applicant  Maurice & Judith Huet 
Property Owner  Maurice & Judith Huet 
Existing Parcel Size  39.91 ac +/- or 17.01 ha +/-  
Purpose of Re-designation  To create three (3) CR-1 lots for residential use 
Ward  3 - Valleyview 
Rural Area  Valleyview 
 
 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:  N/A 
Municipal Development Plan: Section 4.2 Country Residental 
Area Structure Plan:  N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:  Country Residential One (CR-1) 
Policy and Procedures:  Once a First Reading is given; a Public Hearing will be scheduled. 
 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:  4.3 km / 2.8 miles  East to: Valleyview 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY: 43 Yes No  

Greenview, Alberta     1 
1111

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 

Situated within Growth Centre:  Yes No  

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area  Yes No  

 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:  Agricultural 
Predominant Development on Property:  Single Family Dwelling 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent:  N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:  Residential and  Industrial 
Proximity to Utilities:  Adjacent to: East Smoky Gas Pipeline 
 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Waterbodies and Wetlands on Property:  Seasonal Drainage 
Topographical Constraints on Property:  Mixed 
Soil Characteristics:  Clay 
Vegetation and Drainage: Cleared and Mixed Forest 
Potential for Flooding:  No potential for flooding noted during site visit. 
 
Planning & Development History: 

Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications: 
D98-114 Residence and Garage 
D06-257 Addition and Garage 
D13-083 Residential Accessory Building 

Certificate of Title: 032 293 140 
Encumbrances on Title Affecting 
Application:  

East Smoky Gas Co-op: Right-of-Way;  
 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services: Cistern                  Existing  Proposed 

Sewer Services:   Holding Tank       Existing  Proposed 
Stormwater/Drainage Improvements: N/A                     
Solid Waste Disposal: N/A     

Approach/Road Access RGE RD 230      Existing, to one lot only   
 
 
Suitability Assessment:  
Land Suitable for Intended Use Yes No  

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses Yes No  

2     Request for Decision 
1212



 

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access Yes No    

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements Yes No  

 
 
Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:  September 13 2013 
Application Circulated:  September 17 2013 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:   

Application Revised from Submission:  Yes No 

Referral Comments:  

East Smoky Gas Co-op, September 17, 2013:  
No concerns. 
 
M.D Public Works, September 20, 2013:  
 
Approach to Lot 2 is in place and meets MD standards. 
Lots 1 & 3 have no access and require approaches with min 500 mm x 
14 meter CSP culvert.  
Road widening is required on RGE RD 230. T 
There are no drainage concerns. 
 
ATCO Gas, September 20, 2013:  
The Engineering and Design Department of ATCO Gas has reviewed the 
above named plan and this project is not in ATCO Gas franchise area 
and we do not have any pipelines in the area. 
 
Alberta Transportation, November 7, 2013:  
Alberta transportation has no particular concerns with the Land Use 
Amendment. However the proposed subdivision may be impacted by 
Highway 43 and 49 Alberta Transportation Realignment Functional 
Planning Study currently underway. This study is not expected to be 
finalized in the near future. 
 
Comment on Land Use Amendment should not be construed as the 
department granting variance to the requirements of Section 14 of the 
Subdivision and Development Regulation. The department will 
comment further when we receive the complete subdivision 
application referral from the Municipality. 
 

Objections Received and Addressed:  Yes No objections received. 
 
  
DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:  (Old Format) 
  

Greenview, Alberta     3 
1313



 

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Bylaw No. 13-711 and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map) 
• Land Use Amendment Application 
• Ownership/Location Map 
• Referral Comments 
 

  

4     Request for Decision 
1414



 

 

BYLAW NO. 13-711 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

  

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03-396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

1. That Map No. 224 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03-396, be added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of  
the Northeast quarter of Section Thirteen(13) 

Within Township Seventy (70) 
Range Twenty-three  (23), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR-1" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this ___________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 

      ________________________________ 
  REEVE  

 
 

      ________________________________ 
     CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 
  

Greenview, Alberta     5 
1515



 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 13-711  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of  
the Northeast quarter of Section Thirteen(13) 

Within Township Seventy (70) 
Range Twenty-three  (23), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR-1" District, 
As identified below: 

 
 

 
  

6     Request for Decision 
1616



 

Land Use Amendment Application  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Greenview, Alberta     7 
1717



 

Ownership/Location Map 
 
  

8     Request for Decision 
1818



 

Referral Comments 
East Smoky Gas Co-op 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Greenview, Alberta     9 
1919



 

Referral Comments 
M.D Public Works 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

10     Request for Decision 
2020



 

Referral Comments 
ATCO Gas 

 
 

  

Greenview, Alberta     11 
2121



 

Referral Comments 
Alberta Transportation 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

12     Request for Decision 
2222



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Bylaw No. 14-718 SW 6-72-26-W5M 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: Tuesday, February-25-2014 CAO:  MANAGER:  
DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning AGM: GG PRESENTER:   GC 
FILE NO./LEGAL: A13-014   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
    FINANCIAL REVIEW:  

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 14-718 for Thorpe to re-designate the lands from Agricultural District 
to Country Residential One District on SW 6-72-26-W5M. 
 
That Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 14-718 under Thorpe to be held on March 25, 2014 at 10:00 
a.m. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
To re-designate 4.12ha or 10.17 Acres +/- from Agriculture (A)  to Country Residential One (CR-1).  
  
APPLICATION OVERVIEW: 
To subdivide the existing yard site out of these the SW and NW 6-72-26-W5M. 
 
Applicant  Della Thorpe as appointed Power of Attorney for Elizabeth Robertson 
Property Owner  Elizabeth Robertson 
Existing Parcel Size  4.12ha or 10.17ac +/-  
Purpose of Re-designation  Subdivision of existing yard site. 
Ward  6 - DeBolt / Puskwaskau 
Rural Area  DeBolt  
 
 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:  N/A 
Municipal Development Plan: Section 4.2 Country Residental 
Area Structure Plan:  N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:  Country Residential One (CR-1) 
Policy and Procedures:  Once a First Reading is given; a Public Hearing will be scheduled. 
 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:  2.2 km / 1.4 miles  Northwest to: DeBolt 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY:  Yes No  

Greenview, Alberta     1 
2323

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 

Situated within Growth Centre:  Yes No  

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area  Yes No  

 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:  Agricultural 
Predominant Development on Property:  Single Family Dwelling 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent:  N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:  Agricultural 

Proximity to Utilities:  Adjacent to: Alberta Power; East Smoky Gas Pipeline; ATCO Electric 
Power Line; 

 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Water bodies and Wetlands on Property:  N/A 
Topographical Constraints on Property:  Flat 
Soil Characteristics:  Mixed Soils 
Vegetation and Drainage: Hayland 
Potential for Flooding:  No potential for flooding noted during site visit. 
 
Planning & Development History: 
Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications:  
Certificate of Title: 132 032 638 

Encumbrances on Title Affecting 
Application:  

Alberta Power Limited: Right-of-Way;  
East Smoky Gas Co-op: Right-of-Way; 
ATCO Electric: Right-of-Way; 
Alberta Power Limited: Right-of-Way; 
 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services: Water Well       Existing  Proposed 

Sewer Services:   Pump Out System      Existing  Proposed 

Storm water/Drainage Improvements: N/A      Existing  Proposed 

Solid Waste Disposal: N/A      Existing  Proposed 

Approach/Road Access On the quarter line      Existing  Proposed 

 
 

2     Request for Decision 
2424



 

 
 
Suitability Assessment:  
Land Suitable for Intended Use Yes No  

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses Yes No  

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access Yes No  

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements Yes No  

 
 
Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:  December 17 2013 
Application Circulated:  January 21 2014 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:   

Application Revised from Submission:  Yes No 

Referral Comments:  East Smoky Gas Co-op, January 23, 2014: No Objection (circled). 
 

Objections Received and Addressed:  Yes No objections received. 
 
  
DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Bylaw No. 14-718 and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map # 65) 
• Land Use Amendment Application 
• Ownership/Location Map 
• Referral Notice 
• Referral Comments  

  

Greenview, Alberta     3 
2525



 

 

BYLAW NO. 14-718 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

  

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03-396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

1. That Map No. 65 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03-396, be added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of  
the West half of Section Six(6) 

Within Township Seventy Two (72) 
Range Twenty-six  (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR-1" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this ___________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 

      ________________________________ 
  REEVE  

 
 

      ________________________________ 
     CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 
  

4     Request for Decision 
2626



 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 14-718  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of  
the West half of Section Six(6) 

Within Township Seventy Two (72) 
Range Twenty-six  (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR-1" District, 
As identified below: 

 
 

 
  

Greenview, Alberta     5 
2727



 

Land Use Amendment Application  
 

 
 
 
 
 

6     Request for Decision 
2828



 

 Land Use Amendment Application   
 
 

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     7 
2929



 

Ownership/Location Map 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8     Request for Decision 
3030



 

Notice to Referrals 
 

 

 
 
 

Greenview, Alberta     9 
3131



 

Notice to Referrals 
 

 

 
 
 

  

10     Request for Decision 
3232



 

Referral Comments 
 
 

 

 

Greenview, Alberta     11 
3333



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Bylaw No.14-720 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE: Tuesday, February-25-2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: SAR 
DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning AGM: GG PRESENTER:   GC 
FILE NO./LEGAL: A13-012/ NW-20-72-26-W5   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
    FINANCIAL REVIEW:  

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
That Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 14-720 for Van Haga to re-designate the lands from Agricultural District 
to Country Residential One District on NW-20-72-26-W5M. 
 
That Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 14-719 under Van Haga to be held on April 8, 2014 at 10:00 
a.m. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
To re-designate 23.25 Acres from Agriculture (A)  to Country Residential One (CR-1).  
  
APPLICATION OVERVIEW: 
 
Applicant  David & Beverly Van Haga  
Property Owner  David & Beverly Van Haga 
Existing Parcel Size  23.25 ac +/- or 9.41 ha +/-  
Purpose of Re-designation  To create one (1) CR-1 lots for residential use 
Ward  6 - DeBolt / Puskwaskau 
Rural Area  DeBolt  
 
 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:  N/A 
Municipal Development Plan: Section 4.2 Country Residental 
Area Structure Plan:  N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:  Country Residential One (CR-1) 
Policy and Procedures:  Once a First Reading is given; a Public Hearing will be scheduled. 
 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:  4.39 km / 2.7 miles  Southwest to: DeBolt 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY: 43 ☐ Yes         ☒ No 
Situated within Growth Centre:  ☐ Yes         ☒ No 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
3434

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area  ☐ Yes         ☒ No 

 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:  Agricultural 
Predominant Development on Property:  Single Family Dwelling 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent:  N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:  Residential 
Proximity to Utilities:  Adjacent to:  
 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Water bodies and Wetlands on Property:  Seasonal Drainage 
Topographical Constraints on Property:  Mixed 
Soil Characteristics:  Clay 
Vegetation and Drainage: Cleared and Mixed Forest 
Potential for Flooding:  No potential for flooding noted during site visit. 
 
Planning & Development History: 
Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications:  
Certificate of Title: 982 225 496 

Encumbrances on Title Affecting 
Application:  

East Smoky Gas Co-op: Right-of-Way;  
Alberta Government Telephones: Right-of-Way; 
ATCO Electric: Right-of-Way Caveat 
 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services: None       Existing  Proposed 

Sewer Services:   None      Existing  Proposed 

Storm water/Drainage Improvements: N/A      Existing  Proposed 

Solid Waste Disposal: N/A      Existing  Proposed 

Approach/Road Access Range Road 265      Existing  Proposed 

 
 
Suitability Assessment:  
Land Suitable for Intended Use Yes No  

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses Yes No  

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access Yes No    

2     Request for Decision 
3535



 

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements Yes No  

 
 
Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:  November 12 2013 
Application Circulated:  January 20 2014 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:   

Application Revised from Submission:  Yes No 

Referral Comments:  
East Smoky Gas Co-op, January 20, 2014: No concerns. 
  
 

Objections Received and Addressed:  Yes No objections received. 
 
  
DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
Higher density in areas of approved existing infrastructure, being the built internal road and signage. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Bylaw No. 14-720 and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map) 
• Land Use Amendment Application 
• Sketch of Proposed Location  
• Ownership/Location Map 
• Referral Comments 
 

  

Greenview, Alberta     3 
3636



 

 

BYLAW NO. 14-720 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

  

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03-396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

1. That Map No. 223 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03-396, is added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of  
the Northwest quarter of Section Twenty(20) 

Within Township Seventy-two (72) 
Range Twenty-six  (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR-1" District, 
as identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this ___________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 

      ________________________________ 
  REEVE  

 
 

      ________________________________ 
     CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 
  

4     Request for Decision 
3737



 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 14-720  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of  
the Northwest quarter of Section Twenty(20) 

Within Township Seventy-two (72) 
Range Twenty-six  (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR-1" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

As identified below: 
 

 

 
  

Greenview, Alberta     5 
3838



 

 Land Use Amendment Application   
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  

6     Request for Decision 
3939



 

 
Land Use Amendment Application 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Greenview, Alberta     7 
4040



 

Sketch of Proposed Location 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8     Request for Decision 
4141



 

 
 

Ownership/Location Map 
 

Greenview, Alberta     9 
4242



 

 
 
 

Referral Comments 

10     Request for Decision 
4343



 

 
 

Greenview, Alberta     11 
4444



 

Referral Comments 
 

 
 
 
 

 

12     Request for Decision 
4545



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Compactor Tender Results 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: SD 

DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning/Environmental Services  GM: GG PRESENTER: GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve the tender submitted by Finning Canada Grande Prairie, for the supply of one 2014 (or 
comparable 2013) Cat 816 F landfill compactor with funds to come from the 2014 Capital Budget in the amount of 
$ 439,329.00. 
 
That Council approve the purchase of one auto greaser and a perimeter cell booster for the compactor with funds 
to come from the 2014 Capital Budget in the amount of $8,862.00. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Council approved the motion 13.12.697 on Jan 14, 2014 to purchase a landfill compactor with an upset limit of 
$550,000.  
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The advantages of the 816F cat would increase capacity at the regional landfill by 40% and the life of the cell from 3 
years to 5 years.   
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Included in the 2014 Capital Budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Tender Results 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
4646

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


4747



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: 2014 Paving Tender Contract 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: 
 

MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning AGM: GG PRESENTER: GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council agrees to publicly advertise the 2014 paving tender contract as identified by administration. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Little Smoky Road Phase 4 – Base paving to be publicly advertised in the 2014 paving tender request. 
 
Schedule “B” within the tender documents includes Little Smoky Water Point Access Road, final stage paving of 
Twp.704 between RR 230 and HWY 49, Valleyview Golf Course Road bridge approaches and repair of culvert 
settlements on Sturgeon Heights Road/Suncor Road. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
By advertising at the beginning of the year it allows paving contractors to bid lower rates. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
2014 Capital Budget 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• None 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
4848

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Area Road Report 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: WB 

DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning/Operations AGM: GG PRESENTER: GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council receive Administration’s report on the Grande Cache Area Roads for information. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Council requested that staff prepare a report on the status and maintenance of the roads within the co-ops and 
enterprises in Grade Cache. 
 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Greenview incorporated in 1994 and has since maintained the roads that provide the main access through the Co-ops 
and Enterprises in the Grande Cache area. These gravel roads are identified on the map that Greenview provides the 
contract grader operator in the area. The roads are graded on a schedule similar to other local roads in Greenview. 
The focus is to keep a smooth driving surface while not over grading that creates unwanted dusty conditions. 
Greenview has normally re-graveled the roads on a four year rotation. It is proposed that a majority of the roads will 
be re-graveled this year. Greenview also provides a limited amount of dust control in areas that are frequented by 
campers and boaters. This amounted to approximately 1200 feet in two sections. The roads in the Co-ops and 
Enterprises are approximately 90% of the total area the contractor maintains. As the Co-ops are located a considerable 
distance from each other, a substantial amount of time is spent traveling between sites. The total amount spent on 
the Grande Cache contract in 2013 was approximately $108,000.00.  Allowing for travel time the amount that can 
conservatively be attributed to the Co-ops is $100,000.00. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Road Maintenance Budget 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Grande Cache Grader Beat Area Map 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
4949

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


5050



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Policy 4002 – Farmland Access Roads 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services/Legislative Services GM: RO PRESENTER:  
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 

    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve Policy 4002 – Farmland Access Roads as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
This policy was reviewed at the January 21, 2014 Committee of the Whole.  One change was recommended and that 
was to add the word “immediately” in Clause seven after the word “applicant’s”.  This effectively means that if a 
farmer has a cluster of parcels, more than one access could be built to different parts if there hasn’t been access 
constructed to the parcel in question or an “immediately adjacent” parcel. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
This is a new policy.  Council could choose not to proceed with the policy or to make further amendements. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
As annually determined by Budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 4002 – Farmland Access Roads. 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
5151

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P O
 L I C Y 

 
Approved:     
 

Title:  Farmland Access Roads 
 
Policy No: 4002 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  ___________ 
 
Supersedes Policy No: (None)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement:  The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) will construct 
farmland access roads to give access to any cultivated lands, which includes land cleared for 
grazing, which have no accessible access through a developed/undeveloped Road 
Allowance(s) and/or any applicant owned adjoining lands. 
 
 
Purpose: : The purpose of the Policy is to provide physical access to cultivated land(s) having 
no accessibility. 
 
 
Principles:  

1. Greenview will provide an economical form of farmland access for agricultural 
purposes. 

2. Under this policy, Greenview staff will review the submitted application and bring 
forward a recommendation utilizing a rating system approved by Council. 

3. Council will annually consider allocating funds for farmland access roads. 
4. In determining a recommendation for Council on which farmland access roads, if 

any to construct, Greenview staff will review criteria based upon the current 
application(s). 

5. Notwithstanding any recommendation from Greenview staff, Council at all times 
maintain the authority to determine which roads, if any are to be constructed and 
in which order. 

6. In determining the most economical route for a potential farmland access road, 
Greenview staff will consider a number of factors including, but not limited to, 
physical land barriers such as hills, swamps and water bodies, soil conditions and 
any other man-made constraints such as pipelines, power lines, building and 
other structures. 

7. No farmland access roads will be constructed where there is currently adequate 
access to the parcel whether through an existing road way or through the 
applicant’s immediately adjacent parcel. 

8. If any applications are received after August 1, Council may decide to accept the 
application in the current year or defer to the following year. 

9. Despite anything in this policy, it is recognized and understood that this policy 
does not replace the necessity to look at individual access circumstances and 
challenges which must be considered on an individual basis. 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 4002, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 5252



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Policy 4003 – Traffic Control Devices 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: 
 

MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning/Operations AGM: GG PRESENTER: LC 
FILE NO./LEGAL: Policy EEF 13   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve Policy 4003 – Traffic Control Devices to supersede Policy EEF 13, as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The subject Policy was reformatted and reviewed by the Policy Review Committee. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The Policy Review Committee recommended approval of the revised policy. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 4003 – Traffic Control Devices 
• Policy EEF 13 – Traffic Control Devices 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
5353

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P O
 L I C Y 

 
Regulations: 
 

1. Traffic control devices will be approved and erected by the direction of the Chief 
Administrative Officer or designate, in accordance with Greenview’s Traffic & Fines bylaw. 

2. The following documents will be used to evaluate existing and proposed traffic control 
devises in order to ensure consistency throughout Greenview. 

a) Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Canada (UTCDC) published by the Council on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Canada. 

b) Traffic Signal Control Display Standardization and Guidelines by Underwood 
McClellan Ltd. and published by Alberta Transportation. 

c) Highway Capacity Manual published by the Institute of Transportation 
Engineering (ITE). 

d) Canadian Capacity Guide of Signalized Intersections published by the 
Transportation Association of Canada (TAC). 

e) Various handbooks such as those published from time to time by the 
Transportation Association of Canada and the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers. 

 
Approved:     

Title:  Traffic Control Devices 
 
Policy No: 4003 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  ___________ 
 
Supersedes Policy No: (EES 13)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement:  Greenview is responsible to provide traffic accommodations that promote 
safe travel in a well-defined manner.  
 
 
Purpose:  To provide guidance to Greenview Administration on the placement and 
maintenance of traffic control devices throughout Greenview to regulate, warn, and guide 
both vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 
 
Principles:  

1. The relative priority between traffic streams, vehicular and pedestrian traffic will 
be defined at all intersections and at all other location where necessary. 

2. Plans will be prepared and implemented to eliminate or minimize the need for 
reduced speed zones and a hierarchy of pedestrian crossing facilities will be 
implemented, having regard to nationally accepted criteria. 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 4003, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 5454



 

 

 

M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 

POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section: 
 
ENGINEERING & 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES 
 

          POLICY NUMBER:   EES 13 

 
POLICY TITLE: TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES Page 1 of 1 

 
Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number:  11.04.206 
 

 
PURPOSE: 

 
This policy is designed to provide guidance to M.D. Administration on the placement and maintenance of 
traffic control devices throughout the Municipal District to regulate, warn, and guide both vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic. 
 
POLICY: 

 
Requests for traffic control devices will be directed to the C.A.O. 
 
Traffic control devices (consisting of regulatory, warning, and information traffic signs, traffic signals, 
pavement markings, and community information signs) will be placed and maintained in accordance with 
the several laws (principally the Municipal Government Act, the Highway Traffic Act, and the Public 
Highways Development Act) impacting this matter and with appropriate technical manuals, reports, and 
informational publications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (Original signed copy on file)                                      _____________________________________ 
REEVE    C.A.O. 
 
 
 
 

5555



         POLICY NUMBER:   EES 13 

 
POLICY TITLE: PROCEDURES FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES Page 1 of 1 

 
Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number:  03.04.189 
 

 
PROCEDURES: 

 

 1.0 The relative priority between traffic streams and between vehicular and pedestrian traffic will be 
defined at all intersections and at all other locations where this is necessary. 

 
 2.0 Plans will be prepared and implemented to eliminate or minimize the need for reduced speed 

zones and a hierarchy of pedestrian crossing facilities will be implemented, having regard to 
nationally accepted criteria. 

 
Records of Traffic Control Devices 

 
 1.0 The Engineering & Environmental Services Department will maintain a record of all traffic 

control devices throughout the Municipal District.  This record will be updated on an annual 
basis.  The record and its updates will be approved by the Director of Engineering & 
Environmental Services.   

 
Authority for Placement of Traffic Control Devices 

 
1.0 Traffic control devices will be approved and erected by direction of Council or by direction of the 

C.A.O., under “Traffic By-law & Fines” as appropriate. 
 
2.0 The following documents will be used to evaluate existing and proposed traffic control devices in 

order to ensure consistency throughout the Municipal District. 
 
 a) Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Canada (UTCDC) published by the Council on 

Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Canada 
 b) Traffic Signal Control Display Standardization and Guidelines by Underwood McClellan 

Ltd. and published by Alberta Transportation 
 c) Highway Capacity Manual published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 
 d) Canadian Capacity Guide for Signalized Intersections published by the Transportation 

Association of Canada (TAC) 
 e) Various handbooks such as those published from time to time by the Transportation 

Association of Canada and the Institute of Transportation Engineers. 
 
 
 
 
    ___________________________________ 
    C.A.O.  

5656



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Policy 6302 and Procedure 6302-01 - Roadside Vegetation Management 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services/Agriculture GM: DM PRESENTER: QB 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve Policy 6302 and Procedure 6032-1 – Roadside Vegetation Management as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Policy 6302 was presented to Council on November 26, 2013 and was tabled for revision by the ASB.   
ASB reviewed the revised policy and procedure on January 22, 2014 and recommended the policy and procedure be 
approved by Council. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Benefits: 

This policy establishes the principals involved to manage and control the proliferation of noxious and noxious-
prohibited weeds in Greenview controlled roadways and other district lands. 

 
Options: 
 Council may choose to amend the policy and procedure. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
2014 Operational Budget 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 6302 
• Procedure 6302-01 

 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
5757

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

 

 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

Procedure Title: ROADSIDE VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 
 
Procedure No: 6302-01 
 
Approval: CAO 
 
Effective Date:  xxxx  

 
Supersedes Procedure No: AG 06 

 
 
1. Definitions 
 
1.1. Eradicate means “destroy all parts of the plant, and render reproductive parts of the plant 

non-viable. 
 

1.2. Control means “inhibit the growth or spread of the plant. 
 

1.3. Noxious Weeds and Prohibited Noxious Weeds are as defined, and include all those 
weeds identified, under the Weed Control Act of Alberta (RSA 2008/W-5.1) and the Weed 
Control Regulation (19/2010), as amended from time to time.  As well, Noxious Weeds 
and Prohibited Noxious Weeds shall include invasive plant species which have been 
elevated in status by municipal bylaw.   
 

2. Responsibilities 
 
2.1. Manager of Agricultural Services: 
 
2.1.1.    Coordinate with other municipal departments to develop and implement a brush  
              control program; however, the Greenview vegetation management program shall    
              have priority over brush control. 
 
2.1.2.    To notify the public and beekeepers of the program through advertising. 
 
2.2. Vegetation Management Program Staff: 
 
2.2.1.   Take active measures to control undesirable vegetation including, but not limited to, 
 woody species and tall broadleaf vegetation, which represents a sightline 
 infringement and potential motorist safety hazard, or which may harbour crop 
 diseases or pests, or which may serve as a wildlife attractant, or which may 
 compromise municipal infrastructure along municipal road rights-of-way. 

 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 6302-01, Effective – xxxx Page 1 5858



 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

2.2.2. Utilize integrated pest management strategies to control undesirable vegetation; 
 however, selected control methods shall be determined by physiological and 
 biological characteristics of the plants, with due consideration for cost-effectiveness  and       
efficiency of control, and may include the application of industrial class herbicides. 

 
2.2.3. Undertake all activities, including herbicide applications, in compliance with the 
 Alberta Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act Code of Practice for Pesticide 
 Applications, and conform to the guidelines of the Industrial Vegetation Management 
 Association of Alberta Industry Standards and Good Practices. 
 
2.3. Adjacent Landowners: 
 
2.3.1. May enter into an agreement with Greenview to exempt their properties from 
 herbicide applications for noxious and prohibited noxious weed and/or brush and tall 
 vegetation control.   
 
2.3.2. Upon completion and execution of appropriate documentation, herbicide may be 
 applied up to and into the edge of private land which is adjacent to district road 
 rights-of-way and district controlled lands; however this shall only be permitted if 
 providing this service does not negatively impact the core vegetation management 
 programs of Greenview. 
 
3. General Provisions 
 
3.1. This program shall include road rights-of-way and other district controlled lands. 

 
3.2. Herbicide applications shall be withdrawn adjacent to land exempted under this 

procedure, or adjacent to open bodies of water as defined and restricted under the 
Alberta Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act. 
 

3.3. Herbicide applications adjacent to sensitive areas including residences, dugout, beehives, 
borrow pits and shelterbelts shall be limited to single stem or handgun spot treatments 
unless sensitive areas are located at a distance equal to or greater than 100 meters from 
the road right-of-way, or are protected by natural brush to a distance equal to or greater 
than 50 meters. 

 
 

End of Procedure 
 
 
Approved: ________________ 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 6302-01, Effective – xxxx Page 2 5959



 P O
 L I C Y 

 
Approved:     

Title:  ROADSIDE VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 
 
Policy No: 6302 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  ___________ 
 
Supersedes Policy No: AG 06  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement:  Greenview believes that it is beneficial for the district to implement 
measures to prevent the establishment of, and control the spread of, invasive plant species 
and undesirable vegetation along municipal road rights-of-way and municipally controlled 
land. 
 
 
Purpose:  To abate the spread of Noxious and Prohibited Noxious weeds within district road 
right-of-ways and district controlled land. 
 
 
Principles:  

1. Efficient and cost-effective measures will be used to strive to eradicate Prohibited 
Noxious weeds and to control noxious weeds within district road right-of-ways 
and district controlled land. 

2. Measures used to control and eradicate weeds pursuant to this policy shall 
minimize the potential for negative impacts on the natural environment. 

3. Greenview’s roadside vegetation management program will strive to undertake 
such action as required, and as often as resources allow, to eradicate prohibited 
noxious weeds and control noxious weeds within district road right-of-ways and 
district controlled land. 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 6302, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 6060



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Policy 6303 and Procedure 6303-01  – Weed Control 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: QB 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services/Agriculture GM: DM PRESENTER: QB 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve Policy 6303 and Procedure 6303-01 – Weed Control Policy and Procedure as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Policy 6303 was presented to Council on November 26, 2013 and was tabled to go back to ASB for further revision.  
ASB reviewed the revised policy and procedure on January 22, 2014 and are recommending approval of it to Council. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Benefits: 

This policy establishes the principals involved to manage and control the proliferation of noxious and prohibited-
noxious weeds in Greenview on private and public lands. 
 

Options: 
 Council may amend the policy and procedures. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
2014 Operational Budget 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 6303 
• Policy 6303-01 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
6161

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P O
 L I C Y 

 
 
Approved:    

Title:  WEED CONTROL 
 
Policy No: 6303 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  ___________ 
 
Supersedes Policy No: AG 07  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement:  Greenview believes that it is beneficial to implement measures to prevent 
the establishment of, and to control the spread of, invasive plant species on all public and 
private lands within the boundaries of Greenview. 
 
 
Purpose:  To establish a policy to prevent the establishment and to control the spread of    
invasive plant species (Noxious and Prohibited Noxious weeds as designated under the Weed 
Control Act of Alberta, and associated Regulations). 
 
 
 
Principles:  

1. The effective control of noxious and eradication of prohibited noxious weeds -will 
assist in the protection of agricultural productivity and the preservation of the 
natural environment. 

2. Greenview will strive to eradicate prohibited noxious weeds and to control 
noxious weeds. 

3. This Policy will be reviewed annually. 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy6303, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 6262



 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

 

 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

Procedure Title: WEED CONTROL 
 
Procedure No: 6303-01 
 
Approval: CAO 
 
Effective Date:  xxxx  

 
Supersedes Procedure No: AG 07 

 
 
1. Definitions 
 
1.1. Eradicate means:  destroy all parts of the plant, and render reproductive parts of the plant 

non-viable. 
 

1.2. Control means:  inhibit the growth or spread of the plant. 
 

1.3. Noxious Weeds and Prohibited Noxious Weeds are as defined, and include all those 
weeds identified, under the Weed Control Act of Alberta (RSA 2008/W-5.1) and the Weed 
Control Regulation (19/2010), as amended from time to time.  As well, Noxious Weeds 
and Prohibited Noxious Weeds shall include invasive plant species which have been 
elevated in status by municipal bylaw. 
 

2. Responsibilities 
 
2.1. Greenview Council to: 
 
2.1.1    Appoint the Agricultural Services Supervisor and other weed/pest inspectors as  
             identified under the Weed Control Act. 
 
2.1.2    Appoint an independent appeal committee at the organizational meeting each year to  
             review and render decisions upon appeals submitted. 
 
2.2. Manager of Agricultural Services and Appointed Weed Inspectors to: 
 
2.2.1    Serve as Inspectors under the Weed Control Act and shall, as authorized under this  
             Act, conduct weed inspections and surveillance and shall monitor and accurately  
              record weed infestations observed. 
 
2.2.2     Encourage voluntary compliance with the requirements of the Weed Control Act and 
              shall, as a last resort, take action and/or impose penalties, as required by the noted  

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 6303-01, Effective – xxxx Page 1 6363



 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

              Act, upon the landowners or occupants in the event that declared weed species infest  
              public or private lands unabated. 
 
2.2.3     Issue and enforce such Notices as required by the Weed Control Act when the Inspector      
              is of the opinion that approximately 20% or more of the property contains Noxious weeds                                                
 and the landowner or occupant is unwilling to take measures to control the infestation.  
 Warning letters shall be sent to property owners where approximately 15% or more of 
 the property contains Noxious Weeds. Upon confirmation of a noxious weed infestation 
 on private land, the inspector may notify the landowner by way of telephone or personal 
 visit; followed by correspondence; and then enforcement procedures if required. 
 
2.2.4     Issue and enforce such Notices as required by the Weed Control Act when the  
              Inspector is of the opinion that the property contains Prohibited Noxious weeds and  
              the landowner or occupant is unwilling to take measures to eradicate the infestation.   
 
2.2.5     All Notices under the Weed Control Act shall be confidentially copied to members of 
              Council and the Agricultural Service Board. 
 
2.2.6     Provide practical advice and technical assistance to residents, ratepayers, and  
              stakeholders in appropriate weed prevention and management practices, and shall  
              conduct activities to prevent establishment and/or limit the spread of declared  
              weeds. 
 
2.3        Human Resources to: 
 
2.3.1     Provide appropriate identification to duly appointed Weed Inspectors. 
 
2.4 Registered Landowners and Industrial Lease Holders to: 
 
2.4.1    Eradicate all Prohibited Noxious weeds observed on private or public lands during  
             inspections conducted pursuant to this procedure, through cooperation or  
            enforcement. 
 
2.4.2    Control all Noxious weeds observed on private or public lands during inspections  
             conducted pursuant to this procedure, through cooperation or enforcement. 
 
 
 
End of Procedure 
 
 
Approved: ________________ 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 6303-01, Effective – xxxx Page 2 6464



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Policy 1002 and Procedure 1002-01 – Travel and Subsistence Amendments 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services/Finance GM: RO PRESENTER: LC 
FILE NO./LEGAL: Policy 1002   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve Procedure 1002-01 – Travel and Subsistence with amendments, as presented. 
 
That Council accept Policy 1002 – Travel and Subsistence Policy, as information. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
At the January 21, 2014 Committee of the Whole meeting, Council recommended amending Procedure 1002-01 to 
change the rates for meals from $15 for breakfast, $15 for lunch and $21 for supper to $20, $20 and $30 respectively.  
In amending this procedure, Administration has also put the policy in the new format.  The contents of the actual 
policy have not changed. 
 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The noted change to the procedure brings the costs more in line with the actual meal charges encountered.  Council 
could choose to accept the recommendation, choose different amounts or make other changes to the policy or 
procedure. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Potential 20% increase included in the 2014 budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 1002 
• Procedure 1002-01 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
6565

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P O
 L I C Y 

 
 
Approved:  

Title:  TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE 
 
Policy No: 1002 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  February 25, 
2014 
 
Supersedes Policy No: AD 28 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 
 
Policy Statement:  Greenview believes it is appropriate to reimburse Council and staff for 
out-of-pocket expenses when travelling to carry-out Greenview business. All reasonable 
expenses will be covered by Greenview for Council and staff. 
 
 
Purpose:  To provide an equitable process for reimbursing Council and staff members for 
travel abroad when conducting Greenview business. 
 
 
Principles:  

1. Reasonable compensation will be provided to Council Members and staff when 
they are required to travel to conduct Greenview business. 

2. Proper checks and balances need to be built into the procedures pertaining to 
this policy to ensure that reimbursement is equitable and public funds are 
protected while not bestowing financial hardship on claimants. 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy1002, Effective xxxx Page 1 6666



 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

 

 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

Procedure Title: TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE 
 
Procedure No: 1002-01 
 
Approval: CAO 
 
Effective Date:  February 25, 2014 

 
Supersedes Procedure No: AD 28 

 
 
1. Definitions 
 
1.1. Travel Status refers to when a Council member, Board Member or Greenview employee 

is traveling to attend a work assignment, conference, meeting, or other related 
Greenview function, both within and outside of the municipal boundaries. 

 
2. Responsibilities 
 
2.1. Council Members, Board Members and Greenview Staff to: 
 
2.1.1. Submit expense claims in accordance with the provisions of this procedure; 
 
2.1.2. Submit expense claims within thirty (30) days from the end of the month in which 

the expense occurs. 
 
2.2. Council and Senior Management: 
 
2.2.1. May claim a business meal when hosting another person(s).  An original receipt 

must be provided with the claim as well as the name(s) of the person(s) hosted. 
 
2.3 Senior Management to: 
 
2.3.1 Responsible for reviewing all expense claims submitted by employees within their 

division; 
 
2.3.2 Refer their expense claims to the CAO for approval or, in the case of the CAO, to 

refer his or her expense claim to the Reeve for approval. 
 
2.4 Supervisors to: 
 
2.4.1 Provide authorization to staff prior to staff attending meetings, training or other 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure1002-01, Effective – xxxx Page 1 6767



 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

Greenview business and incurring expenses pursuant to this procedure; however, 
an employee who incurs an unexpected meal expense will be reimbursed in 
accordance with the provisions of this policy upon the production of a receipt and 
with the approval of their immediate supervisor. 

 
2.5 Corporate Services Staff to: 
 
2.5.1  Issue payment to claimants within thirty (30) days of approval. 
 
3. Claim Parameters  
 
3.1 Meals 
 
3.1.1  Meals may be reimbursed without receipts at the following rates: 
 

• Breakfast:  $20.00; 
• Lunch:  $20.00; 
• Dinner  $30.00. 

 
3.1.2 Alternatively, meals may be reimbursed upon the production of original receipts 

for the total amount of the receipt including taxes and a maximum gratuity of 
15%. 

 
3.2 Mileage 
 
3.2.1 The kilometre rate will be paid in accordance with the Canada Revenue Agency 

(CRA) rate of $0.54 per kilometre travelled for the first 5000 km and $0.48 per 
Kilometre for mileage over 5000 km, in any given year. 

 
3.2.2 When a claimant is required to travel outside of the municipality on Greenview 

business, when possible, a vehicle will be made available to that claimant for use.   
 
3.2.3 Travel out of province will be undertaken by the method approved in advance. 
 
3.2.4 While on conferences or training, a claimant may hire a rental vehicle or be 

reimbursed for taxi expenses.  
 
3.3 Travel Expenses 
 
3.3.1 The following rates will be paid to claimants for the travel expenses listed below: 
 

• Incidental allowance  $15.00 per 24 hour period; 
• Private Accommodation  $30.00 per night; 
• Taxi/Transit/Car Rental  actual cost per receipt; 
• Parking    actual cost per receipt; 
• Hotel accommodation  actual cost per receipt. 

 
 
 
 
Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 1002-01, Effective – xxxx Page 2 6868



 P R O
 C E D

 U
 R E 

4. General Provisions 
 
4.1 When an expense requires the provision of a receipt, the receipt submitted must be the 

original or the claim may be disallowed.  In the instance of a contractor who is required 
to provide original receipts to their company, a reasonable copy of the receipt will suffice. 

 
4.2 Small claims may be accumulated by a claimant before being submitted for approval once 

the total amount of the claims reaches $50.00 or more with the approval of their 
supervisor. 

 
4.3 Greenview will not pay for expense claims submitted more than sixty (60) days after the 

end of the month has elapsed for the expense incurred unless approval is given by the 
appropriate Committee/Board, or in the case of an employee, by the Chief Administrative 
Officer. 

 
End of Procedure 

 
 
Approved: 13.03.170 

 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Procedure 1002-01, Effective – xxxx Page 3 6969



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Amendment to Policy 1009 – Internet Services for Councillors 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: 
 

MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services GM: 
 

PRESENTER: 
 

FILE NO./LEGAL: Policy 1009 – Internet Services for Councillors   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approved Policy 1009 – Internet Services for Councillors, with amendments as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
At the January 21, 2014 Committee of the Whole meeting, Council reviewed this policy and, specifically, clause 5.   
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The Committee of the Whole recommended that clause 5 be changed to reflect that internet charges be reimbursed 
from the date that IPads were issued and that any SIM cards purchased by Council members would be reimbursed as 
well. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
IPads were issued approximately February, 2012.  Four Council members could be reimbursed under this policy 
change, back to that time and the cost of doing so will be a function of the cost of their individual internet services.  If 
the average internet service costs $50 per month, this would be a total of approximately $5000, plus the cost of SIM 
cards. 
 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 1009 – Internet Services for Councillors. 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
7070

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P O
 L I C Y 

 
Regulations: 

 
1. Greenview will reimburse a Member of Council for 100% of the monthly costs of an 

appropriate internet service and 100% of the installation costs and required hardware 
directly related to the connection to the Internet Service Provider.  If a Councillor 
wishes to obtain a higher cost service Greenview will reimburse the Councillor for an 
amount equivalent to the lower cost alternative. 

 
2. Personal use of an internet connection is expected but any additional charges 

generated by personal use will not be eligible for reimbursement. 
 

3. The internet service will be established and paid for by the Member of Council.  
Greenview will provide assistance in establishing the service. 

 
 
 
 

Title:  Internet Services for Members of Council 
 
Policy No: 1009 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date: November 26, 
2013 
 
Supersedes Policy No: CO 21  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) will establish the 
parameters for providing high speed internet connections for Members of Council in their 
homes. 
 
 
Purpose:  The purpose is to ensure that the Member of Council can communicate and 
exchange information and files at an effective speed. 
 
 
Principles:  

1. Internet, email and social media are essential tools for Members of Council and 
the municipal organization. 

2. Members of Council will be provided with laptops by the organization for their 
use, providing access to email, social media, the internet, and an electronic library 
of Greenview bylaws, policies, procedures, maps, studies, and references.  

3. Each Member of Council will have access to an effective internet connection from 
their home. 

4. Due to large size of many files now accessed, an average download speed of 512 
kilobits per second is the minimum internet service to be provided 

 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 1009, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 7171



 P O
 L I C Y 

4. If a Member of Council ceases to hold office before the end of a four year term, 
installation costs will be repaid on a prorated basis over a three year period.  Council 
may waive the repayment by motion. 

 
5. If a Member of Council already has high speed internet service, monthly costs will be 

reimbursed from the date which IPads were issued to Council members.  Council 
members will be reimbursed for any SIM cards purchased since this time, for use in 
Greenview issued electronic equipment. 

 
6. Expenses for an appropriate internet service may be claimed by the Member of 

Council as a part of regular expense claims. At the time that the service or the claim 
is initiated a copy of the bill shall be submitted. Subsequent expense claims do not 
require a copy of the current internet service bill unless the cost of the service 
changes, or a copy of the current bill is requested. 

 
7. Laptops and all software installed remain the property of Greenview, and at the end 

of the term, or other such time that laptops are replaced with newer models, the 
Member of Council may choose to keep the laptop (after all Greenview owned 
software and data is removed) at no charge. 

 
 

Approved:  13.11.642  

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 1009, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 2 7272



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Policy 1015 – Conference Attendance Policy  
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services/Legislative Services GM: RO PRESENTER: LC 
FILE NO./LEGAL: CO 04   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve Policy 1015 – Conference Attendance Policy to replace Policy CO 04, as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
At the Committee of the Whole meeting on January 21, 2014 Council requested that Administration bring forward an 
amendment to the subject policy to allow for conference attendance by Appointed Board Members and to address in 
the revised policy how expenses for spouses/adult interdependent partners would be handled. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
This Policy has been revamped to include the noted amendments.  As well, the policy has been brought into the new 
format. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• Policy 1015 – Conference Attendance (revised); 
• Policy CO 04 – Conference Attendance (current). 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
7373

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 P O
 L I C Y 

 
  

Title: Conference Attendance 
 
Policy No: 1015 
 
Approval: Council 
 
Effective Date:  February 25, 
2014 
 
Supersedes Policy No: CO 04  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
“A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 
Policy Statement:  The Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 (Greenview) believes that 
Council Members and Appointed Board Members benefit from attending relevant 
conferences offered throughout the year.  Conferences provide an invaluable learning 
opportunity through the delivery of educational sessions, trade fares and networking with 
colleagues.   
 
 
Purpose: To provide opportunities for Council Members and Appointed Board Members to 
attend conferences in order to continue to learn and enhance their knowledge on relevant 
subjects and issues. 
 
 
Principles:  

1. Through attending conferences, Council and Board Members will maintain 
awareness of matters and current issues affecting residents and functions of the 
municipality. 

2. All Council Members are encouraged to attend both Alberta Association of 
Municipal Districts and Counties conferences each year, as well as the annual 
“Growing the North” conference and the annual Federation of Canadian 
Municipalities Conference. 

3. Appointed Board Members are encouraged to attend the conferences which are 
appropriate to their appointments. 

4. Council Members and Appointed Board Members will be reimbursed for expenses 
and will be paid an honorarium in accordance with the applicable policies of 
Greenview. 

5. Conference participants under this policy are to provide written or verbal reports 
regarding conferences attended to the Council or Board, as appropriate. 

6. Council will consider requests for approval for attendance of a Council Member 
or Appointed Board Member to other conferences not otherwise specifically 
identified or implied by this policy. 

7. Council Members or Appointed Board Members will not be compensated for any 
expenses associated with attendance at a conference for which prior approval has 
not been provided by Greenview. 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 1015, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 1 7474



 P O
 L I C Y 

8. Any costs incurred as a result of a Council Member or Appointed Board Member 
failing to attend a conference without the necessary cancellation arrangements 
being made prior to the conference will be borne by that Council Member or 
Appointed Board Member. 

9. The spouse or adult interdependent partner of the Council Member or Appointed 
Board Member may accompany the Member to a conference, however any 
additional expenses incurred as a result of their attendance will be covered by the 
Council or Board Member. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  
Policy 1014, Effective (DRAFT #1) Page 2 7575



 

 

 
M. D. OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
POLICY & PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section: 
 
COUNCIL 

 
POLICY NUMBER:  CO 04 

 

POLICY TITLE: CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE Page 1 of 1 

 

Date Adopted by Council / Motion Number: 11.05.292 

 
 
PURPOSE: 

 
To provide guidance regarding the attendance of Council members or Council Committees at different 
conferences being held within a year. 
 
POLICY: 

 
Council will provide opportunity for Councillors and Board members to attend conferences that are related to 
their respective functions. 
 
 1. Council will maintain awareness of matters and current issues affecting residents and functions of the 
 Municipality by attending conferences as applicable. 
 
 2. Council is encouraged to send as many Councillors as possible to the Alberta Association of Municipal 
 Districts and Counties Fall and Spring Conventions. 
 
 3. Council is encouraged to send representatives to various other conferences as appropriate. 
 
 4. Council members attending conferences outside the province will be reimbursed for expenses only in 
 accordance with the Travel and Subsistence Policy. 
 
 5. Councillors and/or Board Members attending conferences will provide written or verbal reports at a 
 following meeting. 
 
 6. Councillors and/or Board Members may request from time to time to attend other conferences not 
 specifically under their mandate subject to a motion of approval from Council. 
 
 7. No Councillor or Board Member will attend any event without prior approval from their respective 
 board.  Anyone who attends any course, conference, seminar, workshop or convention without 
 obtaining prior approval will do so at their own expense, and will not be reimbursed for costs they 
 incurred. 
 
 8. Any Councillor or Board Member who has been approved and registered to attend a conference and 
 fails to attend without notice and a valid excuse, will have all incurred expenses deducted from their 
 remuneration. 
 
 
 
     (Original signed copy on file)                         ________________________________________ 
REEVE    C.A.O. 

7676



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Dawson Wallace Construction Ltd-Waiver of Penalties 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: 
 

MANAGER: DD 

DEPARTMENT: Corporate Services/Finance GM: RO PRESENTER: DD 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council direct Administration to reverse the penalties on Accounts Receivable Account #3124 in the amount 
of $515.10. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Administration came to an agreement with Dawson Wallace Construction Ltd. regarding the outstanding deficiency 
list for the Administration Building.  The deficiency list of December 18th, 2012 and subsequent deficiency lists, were 
taken into consideration and both parties agreed that the remaining holdback funds be divided as follows:    Dawson 
Wallace Construction was paid an outstanding amount of $77,622.16 and Greenview withheld the remaining $20,000 
to fix the remaining deficiencies.   
 
As a part of this agreement, an outstanding invoice that had been billed to Dawson Wallace by Greenview in the 
amount of $2,436.00 was to be taken off the $20,000 that was retained.  The invoice on this account originated in 
November 2012, because it was outstanding invoice it has generated $515.10 in outstanding penalties.   
 
Administration is requesting Council’s approval to reverse the $515.10 in accumulated penalties attached to the 
$2436.00 invoice noted above. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
  
Options: 

• Council may wish not to reverse the penalty. 
 

Disadvantages: 
• This would cause Administration to carry the $515.10 until such time as the auditor advises Council to write 

it off.  
• The balance will increase due to penalties being added to the outstanding penalties. 
 

Benefits: 
• Reversing the penalties on the invoice that has be absorbed by Greenview, would mean that the issue have 

been resolved. 
 
 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
7777

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 

  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Reverse penalties of $ 515.10 on A/R Account #3124 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• N/A 

2     Request for Decision 
7878



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Grande Cache Child Care Society – Grant Request 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: 
 

MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services GM: DM PRESENTER: DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve a grant in the amount of $141,000.00 to the Grande Cache Child Care Society to proceed with 
the purchase of a building. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Grande Cache Child Care Society originally submitted a grant application which was refused as per motion 
13.12.714 requesting $141,000.00 in funding to purchase a building for their use in Grande Cache.  The Society gave 
a presentation at the Committee of the Whole Meeting in Grande Cache on January 24, 2014.  A permanent building 
is requested, as their present location will no longer be available.  As a non-profit organization, they provide service 
to the community and surrounding area. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 

• The request be denied, based on the fact that this could be precedent setting, as Greenview does not support 
day cares in other communities.  

  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 

• Grant funding would be provided from the Community Grants Budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Email –  From Amanda MacDougall, Secretary, Grande Cache Child Care Society, dated February 6, 2014 
• Grant Application – Grande Cache Child Care Society 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
7979

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


8080



8181



8282



8383



8484



8585



8686



8787



8888



8989



9090



  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: Grande Prairie Women’s Residence Association o/a Odyssey House - Grant Agreement 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: 
 

MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services GM: DM PRESENTER: TM 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council authorize the endorsement of the prepared Grant Agreement between Greenview and the Grande 
Prairie Women’s Residence Association o/a Odyssey House as presented. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
At the February 26, 2013 Regular Council Meeting, Council made the following motion: 

GP WOMEN’S RESIDENCE 
ASSOCIATION o/a ODYSSEY 
HOUSE GRANT  

MOTION: 13.02.142.  Moved by: VANDEMARK. Seconded by:  DELORME 
That Council approve a miscellaneous grant in the amount of $325,000 to Odyssey 
House for the construction of the Grande Prairie Women’s Residence with funds to be 
drawn from the tax stabilization reserve and also that Council request the Chief 
Administrative Officer to prepare an agreement with Odyssey House in recognition of 
the grant, and assurance provided that the MD residents will be permitted use of the 
facilities on the same basis as all other users. 
                                                                                           CARRIED 
 

The motion indicates the authority to prepare the agreement.  A final approval is required to authorize the 
endorsement of the agreement as presented. 
 
An agreement for the Odyssey House Grant was prepared and reviewed by Reynolds Mirth Richards & Farmer LLP 
firm.  The agreement was presented to Jasmin Greavett, Executive Director; Odyssey House.  Jasmin requested minor 
revisions.  The revision request was reasonable and accepted by the Community Service Department.  The revised 
agreement was resubmitted to the Odyssey House Director and accepted as presented. Odyssey House 
representatives signed the revised agreement.   
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 

• Council deny the endorsement of the agreement and provide recommendations for reconsideration.  
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 

• Tax Stabilization Reserve – Allocated to the 2014 Budget 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 

• Greenview Motion – Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting, February 26, 2013 
• Revised Signed Agreement. 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
9191

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


 

• Email – Dated January 20, 2014 – Jasmin Greavett, Executive Director, Odyssey House 

2     Request for Decision 
9292



9393



9494



9595



9696



9797



9898



9999



100100



101101



102102



103103



104104



105105



106106



107107



108108



109109



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER:  

DEPARTMENT: Community Services GM: DM PRESENTER: DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 
STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council authorize the Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club to use the 2014 grant funds from the Municipal District 
of Greenview totaling $36,500 to purchase a Tracked Side-by-Side UTV and a new groomer/tracksetter. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
As part of the 2014 annual grant request, the Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club were approved a Capital Grant in the 
amount of $36,500 to assist with the purchase of a used Snow Cat.  The used units the club had looked at purchasing 
have been sold.  A local company has loaned them a tracked side-by-side to groom trails this season and have found 
it is working very well.  The Club is requesting Council’s approval to change the use of the grant funds to purchase a 
used Snow Cat to a new tracked side-by-side and to upgrade their current groomer.  
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 

• Council may deny approval of the request to repurpose the 2014 grant funds to purchase a Tracked Side by 
Side UTV and a new groomer/tracksetter.  

 
• Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club would benefit from the purchase of the identified equipment. 

 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 

• No additional funding is required. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Correspondence from Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
110110

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club 
Box 304 
Fox Creek, Alberta 
T0H 1P0 
 
February 13, 2014 
 
MD of Greenview Council 
 
Re: Request to Amend proceeds 
 
Dear Council Members, we are requesting to have the proceeds from our Capital 
grant amended to the purchase of Tracked side by side UTV and a new 
groomer/tracksetter. 
 
The used units that we were originally looking at purchasing have been sold, and 
there is a small number of these machines available. 
 
We have been fortunate that a local company has loaned us a tracked Polaris 
side by side to groom trails thus far this season. We have found that it works very 
well and feel that this would be a great alternative to a snow-cat as it would be a 
new machine. As such it would have a warranty and be much more serviceable. 
We would also be able to use this unit for year round trail work. 
 
We are also looking to upgrade our old groomer with an 84” Ginzugroomer with 
an air actuated track setter. This unit would allow us to renovate, pack and set 
tracks in a single pass, which would enable us to set quality tracks much more 
efficiently. 
 
The cost breakdown would be as follows: 
 
Tracked side by side w/full heated cab, blade,         $30,000* 
winch, wiper, Insurance, registration, GST incl 
  
84’’ Ginzugroomer w/elec Tracksetter          $6690 
incl.GST, freight and brokerage         ________ 
             $36,690  
*approximate, as we have several quotes  
 
Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter. 
 
Brad Peavoy, President 
Fox Creek Nordic and Trail Club 

111111



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Grovedale Firehall -  Bay Door Expansion Adjustment 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: JF 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services/Protective Services GM: DM PRESENTER: JF 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approves the expansion adjustment of the bay door at the Grovedale Firehall to accommodate the 
new 2013 Command / UTV Hauler. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
It was determined that all of the bay doors at the Grovedale Firehall are 12’ high.  The new 2013 Command / UTV 
Hauler requires a 14’ span to accommodate the access and egress of the new apparatus.  The choice of the bay door 
opening to expand was determined by the Fire Chief, Protective Service Manager and Facilities Maintenance 
Supervisor to be one requiring the least amount of technical adjustment requirements. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 

• The benefit of expanding the bay door will ensure that the 2013 Command / UTV Hauler is stored indoors and 
out of the elements where it may be susceptible to weather and vandalism/theft. 

  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

• $15,000 funding to come from within the Protective Services Budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Overhead Door Quote 
• HWD Quote 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
112

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


113



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Grovedale Community and Agricultural Society – Grovedale Arena 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: 
 

DEPARTMENT: Community Services GM: DM PRESENTER: DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL: N/A   LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council approve a grant in the amount of $1,556,372.00 to the Grovedale Community and Agricultural Society 
for the construction of an arena. 
  
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Grovedale Arena is utilized by many community groups and is a focal point of the community.  Numerous 
structural issues are present making safety an area of concern.  The existing facility would be demolished with a new 
structure erected on the same foundation.  Engineers have determined that the existing foundation would 
accommodate the proposed building design. 
 
Funding for this project has been included in the 2014 proposed Capital Budget at this time. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Available Options: 

• That Council deny the request to construct a new arena. This would leave the local community responsible 
for raising the necessary funding which would greatly delay or terminate the project. Staff are not 
recommending this option given the safety issues present as well as the desire to conduct much of the work 
in the “off-season”. 

• That Council award a portion of the grant amount requested. Awarding only a partial amount of the grant 
would leave the community unable to conduct the project as proposed and may result in a cancellation or 
delay to the project. Staff are not recommending this option given the safety issues present as well as the 
desire to conduct much of the work in the “off-season”. 

  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 

• The funding has been included in the proposed 2014 Capital Budget.    
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

• Letter – From Southwest Design & Construction – Grande Prairie Division, RE:  Grovedale Arena Upgrade 
Breakout Pricing. 

• Engineered Drawings 
 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
114

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


115



116



117



 
  

Request for Decision 
4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 

T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 
www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
 
  

SUBJECT: Ridgevalley High School Grad Class Clean-up 
SUBMISSION TO: Regular Council Meeting REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE: February 25, 2014 CAO: MH MANAGER: SD 

DEPARTMENT: Infrastructure & Planning AGM: GG PRESENTER: GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL: 

 
  LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW: LC 

STRATEGIC PLAN:    FINANCIAL REVIEW: 
 

  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
That Council allow staff to authorize transfer station litter picks of up to $1,500.00 per site to be conducted by non 
for profit groups based within Greenview including the towns of Valleyview, Fox Creek and Grande Cache.  
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:  
 
The policy and procedure for Clean-up at Transfer Stations is currently being developed by Greenview administrative 
staff to include transfer station site clean-ups. Greenview has always encouraged local non for profit organizations to 
assist in yearly clean-ups of Greenview transfer stations. Any group will have to sign a contract and waiver for any 
work done at these sites. Greenview staff will be onsite to supervise and to ensure all participates have personal 
protective equipment including safety glasses and vests. 
 
Staff are asking that Council make the recommended motion given that this is not yet covered by policy. The 
recommended motion will allow staff to process requests without having to return to Council for each individual 
request received. Funding for this program is already included in the budget. 
  
OPTIONS - BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Advantages: This program provides value to Greenview and serves to provide funding to local non for profit groups. 
 
Disadvantages: Work being done at these sites presents a small amount of risk to Greenview, however these risks will 
be mitigated by having groups sign waivers and ensuring that proper safety protocol is being followed. 
  
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Funding for this program is already included in the Environmental Services Operating Budget. 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
• None 

Greenview, Alberta     1 
118

http://www.mdgreenview.ab.ca/


MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
                                                               “A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 

 

CAO’s Report 

 
Function: CAO  
 
Date:  February 25th, 2014 
 
Submitted by: Mike Haugen 
 
Meeting with the M.D. of Big Lakes 
The M.D of Big Lakes is requesting a joint meeting with Council. Staff are working to confirm dates and will prepare a rough 
agenda for the meeting for distribution prior to the event. We are currently awaiting a response from the M.D. of Big Lakes. 
Staff are trying to organize this meeting in conjunction with other days that Council will already be gathering for (Council, 
COTW, MPC, etc.) It has not been determined if this will be a daytime or evening meeting or where the exact location will 
be. 
 
Meeting with County of Grande Prairie 
County of Grande Prairie would like to have a joint meeting with the Greenview Council. Upon viewing Council’s calendars 
staff proposed a number of dates for this meeting and are awaiting a response. Tentative dates proposed are March 28th, 
April 17th and April 29th. It has not been determined if this will be a daytime or evening meeting or where the exact location 
will be. 
 
Meeting with Town of Fox Creek 
Town of Fox Creek has contacted administration and requested to meet with Council. Exact topics for the meeting are still 
being determined although it will likely be very informal. After looking at Council’s calendars administration forwarded 
several potential dates and the Town has responded indicating that March 25th works well for them. March 25th is a Regular 
Council Meeting day for Greenview so Council will be gathered anyway. This meeting would be an evening supper meeting. 
Staff is looking to ensure that Council is good with this day. 
 
AAMD&C Spring Convention – Transportation Meeting 
Alberta Transportation is currently scheduling municipal meetings for the upcoming AAMD&C convention. Greenview has 
received a letter asking if we wish to meet with them at some point during the convention. This meeting is held with senior 
personnel from Alberta Transportation and is intended to discuss issues relating to water/wastewater as well as roadways. 
Staff is asking if Council would like to confirm a meeting. 
 
2014 Operating Budget 
Staff have been working to finalize the 2014 Capital Budget. Barring any changes arising from discussion with Council, staff 
will now turn the focus to refining the 2014 Operating Budget. It is Staff’s intent to have the proposed Operating Budget 
ready for distribution to Council on March 7th. Budget discussion is being proposed for the day or evening of March 10th (the 
day/evening before Council). Depending upon the level of changes, this would allow passage on either March 11th or March 
25th. Staff is scheduling first reading of the Tax Rate Bylaw for March 25th with remaining readings to take place on April 8th. 
If first reading of the Tax Rate Bylaw is delayed, Staff will be asking for all three readings to take place on April 8th, although 
this is not the preferred course of action.  

Greenview, Alberta     1 
119



 

Provincial Buildings March 12th – Flag Lowering 
For Council’s information, Greenview has received notice that all schools and Provincial buildings will have their flags 
lowered to half-mast at sunrise on March 12th. Flags will be returned to full mast at noon. This is being done to 
commemorate the end of Canadian military service in Afghanistan. 
 
Town of Valleyview 
This past week I met with Staff from the Town of Valleyview. Several items were discussed including alterations to the way 
maintenance is done at the Fire Hall and the proposed paving of the street in front of the Greenview administration office. 
I will touch on the latter during the 2014 Operating Budget discussions. The former will not have a budget impact. 
 
Society of Local Government Managers (SLGM) – Leadership Legacy 
I have been invited by the SLGM to participate in discussion and development of Leadership tools for use by CAOs and 
Councils regarding recruitment and training. This session will focus on: 

• SLGM Leader Profiles to guide the selection, training and appraisal of staff  
• SLGM CAO Profile to helps Council with recruitment, feedback and appraisals  
• SLGM Leader Profile Guides for self- assessment and personal development  
• Local Government Leadership Chart to guide succession and career development  
• Top priorities for SLGM training and development efforts 

This discussion takes place in April and with Council’s indulgence I would like to participate. It is expected that the 
tools developed here will be made available at the SLGM conference in May. I believe that exposure to this 
discussion will have benefit to Greenview given Council’s current goals. The AAMD&C, AUMA (Alberta Urban 
Municipalities Association), AARMA (Alberta Rural Municipal Administrator’s Association) and LGAA (Local 
Government Administration Association) are also taking part in this process. 
 
I have been a participant in similar discussions in the past regarding the Certified Local Government Managers 
designation and the training required to achieve it. 
 
Upcoming Dates: 
 Regional Collaboration Meeting (Committee Members), February 27th  

AAMD&C Spring Convention, March 17th – 19th 
Federation of Canadian Municipalities, May 30 – June 2 
STARS Helipad Grand Opening – June 13th 

2     CAO’s Report 
120


	1.1 AGENDA 14.02.25
	2014 02 25 RC Agenda Package b
	2014 02 25 RC Agenda Package
	3.1 2014 02 11 RC Minutes
	6.1 a Bylaw 13-711 NE 13-70-23-W5 Huet
	6.2 a Bylaw No. 14-718  SW 6-72-26-W5M
	6.3 a Bylaw 14-720 NW-20-72-26-W5M Van Haga
	8.1 a RFD Compactor
	8.1 b Compactor Tender Results
	8.2 a RFD 2014 Paving Tender
	8.3 a RFD Grande Cache Road Report
	8.3 b Grande Cache Map
	8.4 a RFD - Policy 4002 - Farmland Access Roads
	8.4 b Policy 4002 - Farmland Access Roads Reformatted
	8.5 a RFD - Policy 4003 - Traffic Control Devices
	8.5 b Policy 4003 - Traffic Control Devices Reformatted
	8.5 c EES 13 - Traffic Control Devices
	8.6 a RFD Policy 6302 and Procedure 6302-01 Roadside Vegetation Management
	8.6 b Procedure 6302 Roadside Vegatation Management
	8.6 c Policy 6302 Roadside Vegation Management Reformatted
	8.7 a RFD - Policy 6303 and Procedure 6303-1 Weed Control
	8.7 b Policy 6303  Weed Control
	8.7 c Procedure 6303-01 Weed Control
	8.8 a RFD Policy 1002  Travel and Subsistences Amendments
	8.8 b Policy 1002 Travel and Subsistence  reformatted
	8.8 c Procedure 1002-01 Travel and Subsistence  reformatted
	8.9 a RFD Policy 1009 Internet Services - Amendment
	8.9 b Policy 1009 Internet Services for Members of Council Reformatted
	8.10 a RFD - Policy 1015 - Conference Attendance
	8.10 b Policy 1015 - Conference Attendance
	8.10 c CO 04 - Conference Attendance (1)
	8.11 a 2014 RFD Dawson Wallace Penalty Waiver
	8.12 a RFD Grande Cache Child Care Society
	8.12 b Email - From Grande Cache Child Care Society
	8.12 c Grande Cache Child Day Care Society Grant Application
	8.13 a RFD GP Women's Residence Assoc op as Odyssey House Agreement
	8.13 b Greenview Motion - Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting, February 26, 2013
	8.13 c Revised Signed Agreement
	8.13 d Email - Dated January 20, 2014 - Jasmin Greavett, Exectuve Director, Odyssey House
	8.14 a RFD Fox Creek Nordic  Trail Club 2014
	8.14 b Letter


	2014 02 25 Late Items
	8.15 a RFD Grovedale Firehall Door
	8.15 b CCE02182014_00000
	8.16 a RFD Grovedale Community and Agricultural Society - Grovedale Arena
	8.16 b Letter from Southwest Design & Construction Ltd, RE Grovedale Arena Upgrade Breakout Pricing
	8.16 c Engineered Drawings b
	8.17 a RFD Ridgevalley Grad Class
	8.18 CAO Report - February 25 13




